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Technical Director 
Milport Enterprises, Inc. 
2829 South 5th Court 
Milwaukee, WI  53207 

Reference No. 21-0045 

Dear Mr. Grego: 

This is in response to your April 22, 2021, letter requesting clarification of the Hazardous 
Materials Regulations (HMR; 49 CFR Parts 171-180) applicable to the packaging requirements 
for “UN2672, Ammonia solution, 8, PG III.”  Specifically, you seek clarification on the 
applicability of special provision 336, which is listed in Column 7 of the § 172.101 Hazardous 
Materials Table (HMT) for this material.   

In your letter, you state that your company received a citation for transporting the above 
hazardous material in a packaging meeting the requirements of §§ 173.24(g) and 173.24a(b)(4), 
but not in a packaging described in special provision 336.  It is your understanding that special 
provision 336 was added to the HMR in a final rule published on March 18, 2014 [79 FR 15033] 
under Docket No. PHMSA-2011-0158 (HM-233C), which adopted the terms of Special Permit 
(SP) DOT-SP 11836 as an alternative packaging method than what is required in §§ 173.24(g) 
and 173.24a(b)(4).  You seek confirmation that it was not the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials 
Safety Administration’s (PHMSA) intent to require the operational controls in special provision 
336 to apply to packagings meeting the requirements of §§ 173.24(g) and 173.24a(b)(4). 

Your understanding is correct.  In the HM-233C final rule, PHMSA adopted DOT-SP 11836 as 
new special provision 336.  As stated in the HM-233C final rule, “DOT-SP 11836 authorizes the 
transportation of specific ammonia solutions in specification UNIH1 drums, UN3H1 jerricans, 
and UN6HA1 composite packagings that do not meet the provisions in §§ 173.24(g) and 
173.24a(b)(4).  Specific operational controls are required in lieu of compliance with these two 
requirements.”   

1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE 
Washington, DC 20590  



Therefore, packagings for specific ammonia solutions such as “UN2672, Ammonia solution, 8, 
PG III” that meet the provisions of §§ 173.24(g) and 173.24a(b)(4) are not required to meet the 
operational controls of special provision 336.   
 
I hope this information is helpful.  Please contact us if we can be of further assistance.  
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
T. Glenn Foster 
Chief, Regulatory Review and Reinvention Branch 
Standards and Rulemaking Division 
 



From: INFOCNTR (PHMSA)
To: Dodd, Alice (PHMSA)
Subject: FW: Interpretation of Special Provision 336 in 172.102
Date: Friday, April 23, 2021 3:46:52 PM
Attachments: PHMSA Interpretation request.pdf

Hi Alice,

Please see the attached interpretation request.

Let me know if you need anything else from us.

Regards,

-Breanna

From: Thomas Grego [mailto:Thomas.Grego@milport.com] 
Sent: Thursday, April 22, 2021 8:01 PM
To: PHMSA HM InfoCenter <PHMSAHMInfoCenter@dot.gov>
Subject: Interpretation of Special Provision 336 in 172.102

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Department of Transportation (DOT). Do not click on links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Please see attached request for a formal interpretation of Special Provision 336.

Edmonson

21-0045
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April 22, 2021


Mr. Shane Kelley
Director, Standards and Rulemaking Division
U.S. DOT/PHMSA (PHH-10)
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE East Building, 2nd Floor
Washington, DC 20590 


Dear Mr. Kelley


On 03/03/21 a State Patrol officer carried out a Hazmat inspection of one of our trucks.  We 
were cited for violating 49 CFR § 177.801 for carrying UN2672 Ammonia Solutions, 8, PGIII not in 
accordance with Special Provision 336.  Namely the officer believes that any shipment of UN2672 
Ammonia Solutions requires a warning on the trailer about vapors, training of driver and consignee on 
venting the vapors, and venting of the trailer.  We believe are disagreement is due to ambiguity in 
Special Provision 336.


Milport has in the past shipped UN2672 Ammonia Solutions in packaging that will meet the 
requirements of 49 CFR § 173.24(g) and 49 CFR § 173.24a(b)(4) by using drums with higher pressure 
ratings and without vents.  Others in our industry have instead operated using Special Permit 11836 
which allows using vented drums with extra operational controls.  


Based on reading 79 FR 15033, PHMSA revised the HMR to include the requirements of 
Special Permit 11836 by creating Special Provision 336 in column 7.  I do not believe intent was to 
require the operational controls when the packaging meets the requirement of 49 CFR § 173.24(g) and 
49 CFR § 173.24a(b)(4).


If we took the officers position as correct it would lead to these illogical outcomes.  First, there 
would be no possible way to ship UN2672 Ammonia Solutions in any other manner than by private or 
contract motor carrier.  Second, we would be forced to implement the additional operational controls 
for vapors that will not be present under normal conditions of transportation.


Thank you for looking into this matter and we look forward to your response.


Tom Grego
Technical Director 
Milport Enterprises, Inc
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